10-012
COMMENT
CL-00056

From: David Carroll <david.carroll@aexp.com>
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 4:43 PM

To: dfadefinitions <dfadefinitions@CFTC.gov>
Subject: Definitions

Attach: Comments letter 9-20-10.pdf

American Express made the following annotations on Mon Sep 20 2010 13:43:09
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"This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may contain confidential or
privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, use, or distribution
of the information included in this message and any attachments is prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify us by reply e-mail and immediately and permanently delete this
message and any attachments. Thank you."

American Express a ajouté le commentaire suivant le Mon Sep 20 2010 13:43:09

Ce courrier et toute piece jointe qu'il contient sont réservés au seul destinataire indiqué et peuvent
renfermer des renseignements confidentiels et privilégiés. Si vous n'étes pas le destinataire prévu, toute
divulgation, duplication, utilisation ou distribution du courrier ou de toute piece jointe est interdite. Si
vous avez regu cette communication par erreur, veuillez nous en aviser par courrier et détruire

immédiatement le courrier et les pieces jointes. Merci.
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{1y who maintains a substantial position in swaps for any of the major swap
wcga:za excluding “positions held for hedging or mitigating commercial
{11} whosse outsian d swaps create “substantial counte
sould have ser adverse affects on the financial
States banking *;mi e or financial markets™ or
{11y who is 2 *financig! entity that is highly leveraged relative to the amownt of
capital it holds and that is not subject to capital requirements established b}f
neiate Federal banking agency™ and mantains a substantial posion
in outstandis ng swaps in any major swap category.
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We respectfully request that the Commissions consider clarifving the terms of the
mzezf alternative cz;iectc‘;r 5 in the definition of “major swap participant™ in the
rulemaking process o make clear that entities that enter into swaps in connection with

imiting the commereial risks of their businesses, and not for speculative purposes, she saé
not be deemed to be major swap participants,

<- could be accomplished by making clear that the exclusion in
of the definition for “pmitiom held for hedging or mitigating
would include positions for hedging or mitigating E‘iSis'; from inferest rate

cxposures directly related to the non-swap business aci vities of the

%

and IGreign SUTeney

persor. in this cont
the non-swap aciivit

5l

s1, we believe commercial risk should be broadly de fimed to
ies of the person. We believe such an i.;}.é;azf;*z‘f’lu O X consiste
’x

b
g
(RS

ent of the Dodd-Frank Act to regulate only those swap T)Eif"’fic*-;wﬁ‘rﬂ whiose swap
5 are nnt e zaim tor their business activities, E 1is intent is futher e\(rammad i
paragraph {"i‘}} s)ff;h finition of “major swap participant” Whmh excludes entitie

whase ;z mary business is financing the purchase or lease of their or an affiliate’s
manufactured pre s.’f weis and who use derivatives “for the purpo% of “ujwm g underiyving
commercial risks velated to interest rate and foreign currency exposures”

We would suggest that the exclusion in paragraph {A W1} of the detlinition |
swaps entered into o hedge or mitigate commercial risks should be defined in the rule to
include the use of swaps by other entities to hedge underiying commercial risks of their

business related o interest rate :md foreign currency exposures. This would ensure that

entities using swaps only to mitigate such risks of their business and not for trading or
specuigtive purpeses would not be considered “major swap participants”

W rﬁzsz“:ec‘iéf‘*aiiy suggest thet in *‘emp(mw: a rule regarding the second category of

ma;@r Swap » participants as defined in parag dp’i (A1) of the definition, the
sider in their definitions of what creates a “substantial counterparnt




¥

exposure that could have sertous adverse effects on the ﬁnanc?*-i stability of the United
States banking svstem or financial markets” how exposures are collateralized.
X

Specifical Ji, American Express believes that the extent wo whmh such eXposures

3

collateralized by cash or other Hquid securities that are in the possession of the entity
should be taken int account in determining whether an entity has “subsiantial
courterparty exposure”. Counterparty exposures that are fully collateralived by cash or

other «»q uid securities that are in the possession of the entity should not constitute such
tvpes of exposures at all. Therefore, entities whose outstanding swaps are fully

not be considered “major swap participants” for purposes of the Act
fateral, ifless than full, would be taken inte account in« i“&;m‘ mg
whether an entit the i‘v;*w sf “substantial counterparty é,.,xp@ﬁ!.z.zd that wouic o
1y be deemed a Umiaior swap ;»amupm*” We believe this is “(33“;325&3111 with the i rf““ﬂ:s; o1
the Act to reguiate partic s,pamn whoge swap activities c*mid have adverse effects onthe
banking or financisl system, since positions that are collateralized would not result in
uncovered claims by one counterparty on the other and would not result inmnarket or
svstem disruptions :é:‘

collateral would have sufficient cash or assets to replace its swap position without
disruption,
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one counterparty was unable to perform, sinee the party holding the

o

Stmilarly, we would suggest that the Cominissions aiso consider that swap
positions between 1*~§<3=£*d entities that are under common conirol also i,‘. exciuded from
being considered swaps creating “substantial counterparty exposure”. Such transactions
between affiliates create o oED sosure for the market oniy to the sxtent @i the net position
created by sl az“fzizates Since the counterparties are under commnn control and the
fikelihood of defbuit oy fatlure to pm‘?msr by ome of the related parties is extremely
remote, imposi g \cgs,ziaiia‘.ﬂ a5 4 “major swap participant” on such ps .z'i;;m would no

’lJ’

We would alzo v \pegz ully suggest that in p‘opmmg a rule further detining 4

“major swap participant” under the category described in Paragraph { f%"a{é’%}, ‘i%‘ée
o (}?T‘*‘T‘f"-?‘»%i“s’”‘% preseribe that whether a financial entity not subject to capital requirements

Gng agency is “highly leveraged” be determined based on the %ﬁamg_z U
rreguiations and nm‘ on a new regulatory regime, We believe thizis

consistent with the intent of the definition in Paragraph {A) {111 and would result i
ncreased certainty and consistency of regulation of non- ~bank regulated “financial
entities”.




Swan Degler
Section 72122 1) of the Dodd-Frank Act defines the term “swap d caler” and
nrovides that the CFTU shall exempt from designation as a swap dealer an e ?; that

engages in a de minimis quaniity of swap Guﬂ ing in connection with transactions with or
on behalf of i customers. That section of the Act also provides that the CFTC shall
promulgate regulations to es:*z‘niix factors with respect to the making of this

determination to s SXLMPL.

We respectfully s st that the CFTC consider, as one of the grounds for
conciuding that an ent iy $ SW 1@ ~dealing activities are de minimis, g rule that looks at
factors that would include comparisons of the entity’s volume of swap-dealing activities
relative o the asacts or capital of the entity and also relative 1o the size of the relevant

swap ma r%mi For exgnmm the CFTC could adopt a rule that provides that an entity that

meets the definition of mm;: dealer in Section 721{a) 21} of the Dodd-Frank Act will

fwz b-ﬂ 813 4 dﬂ‘ nated as long as the notlonal value or mark to market value of the sWaps
reld by such :tz‘i‘« that are related 1o its swap dealing activities does not exc ui speciited

pet cont ag_n o8 relative (o ﬁ‘;e assets or capital of the entity and to the twotal size of ¢

relevant market, We believe that the intent of the Dodd-Fran kfau 8810 wa‘@'w/e that

some 1arge ooy ;wzszcx may engage in swap dealing activities for customers, b iwai as

long as those activities are immaterial to the operations of the entity and t© ’Eus. relevant
SWaD ma rka,i such an entity should not be wreated as a swap dealer, ""‘mﬂharmq me
entity’s swap dealing activities 1o its assets or cap nital and to the relovant market would be
a reasonable &m,a amw;t;% & way to establish the de minimis exemption called for by the
Acy, and would allow market participants o have certainty as to the scope of the d

minimis CKOmp fion.

Please contaet the undersigned at (2123 640-5783 shouid you have any quesions or
need further informetion concerning these comments.

avia O
Senior Counsel

American Express Company
David.Carrolioaexp.ocom
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